
ADDENDUM NO. 2 

TO THE BID DOCUMENTS 

FOR THE 

2019-BRAA-02-RFP-SECURITY GUARD SERVICES 

BOCA RATON AIRPORT 

BOCA RATON, FLORIDA 

December 2, 2019 PAGE 1 of 1 

TO: ALL HOLDERS OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

a. Your attention is directed to the following interpretations of, changes in, and additions to the Contract
Specifications and Plans for the above named project at Boca Raton Airport, Boca Raton, Florida.

b. This Addendum is part of the Contract Documents, and the bidders are required to acknowledge
receipt of this Addendum in the space provided below.

This addendum includes the following (see attachments): 

1. CONTRACTOR QUESTIONS – RFI #2 (attached)
2. CBP BADGING REQUIREMENTS - Exhibit A

NOTE: Sign and Return Addendum #2 Cover with Bids 

Acknowledged:  signature of Bidder 

Name of Bidder: Date: 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 2 

2019-BRAA-02-RFP-Security Guard Services Addendum No. 2 



Security RFP Questions 

12/2/2019 
• Who is the current incumbent?

Platinum Group Security.

• When was the current incumbent awarded the contract?

The current contract was award in January 2015.

• What is the estimated usage (number of annual hours) of prior contract?

A minimum of 1 guard on duty 24hrs per day, 365 days per year for an estimated total of
8760 hours per year.

• What is the estimated amount spent on this contract last year?

In the last contract year, the amount spent was $183,610.

• What is the estimated total number of annual hours for this contract?

A minimum of 1 guard on duty 24hrs per day, 365 days per year for an estimated total of
8760 hours per year. See technical specs for additional information.

• What is the current bill rate?

The current hourly rate is $21.37.

• What was the contract amount spent last year?

In the last contract year, the amount spent was $183,610.

• Do attachments such as Resumes, References, Licenses, Sample daily Log Reports,

Sample Invoice, Sample Incident Report, Sample Employee Timesheet Form,

Sample Supervisor Inspection Report, Sample Employment Application Form

count toward the page count?

Yes, with the exceptions as listed in RFP Document.

• How many sites need services?

There is one site that needs service.



• Are there any additional services that may be needed that are not listed in the RFP? IE 

Additional sites, seasonal required training etc.?  

No. 

• Is there any minimum wage/pay?  

See RFP Section 2.40 for general minimum wage requirements. See Technical Specs for 
contract specific wage requirements. 

• Is there any prevailing wage, living wage ordinance, state or local mandated wage, 

contract specific wage, or collective bargaining agreement?  

See RFP Section 2.40 for general minimum wage requirements. See Technical Specs 

for contract specific wage requirements.  

• Is a Bid Bond required? No. 

a) If yes, how much? 

b) How often / how many times have you assessed liquidated damages, if 
applicable? 

• If awarded, will a Performance Bond be required? No. 

a) If yes, how much? 

• If awarded, will a Payment Bond be required? No. 

a) If yes, how much? 

• Are there any vehicles required for this bid, if so, how many?  

See Technical Specs. 

• Could you please provide a list of all equipment needed for this job?  

See Technical Specs. 

• Could you provide all hours for this job?  

See Technical Specs. 

• Is there a pricing form or format?  

Pricing shall be submitted in the following format: 



• How many total guards are needed for this job?

See Technical Specs.

• Are all pages of this solicitation required to be submitted and turned in on the due date?

Or only the forms that require a markup need to be submitted?

All pages of the solicitation are required to be submitted and turned in on the due date.

• Will your agency hold a public opening?

Yes, on date listed in the RFP.

• Are there any M/W/S/VS/DBE goals?

No.

• Are there any subcontracting goals?

Per Section 3.9 of the RFP, no subcontracting is permitted.

• Is there a specified way you would like responses to come? For example, bound,
unbound, 3-ring binder(s), pages limits, paper type etc.?

See RFP.

• Could you please clarify how many originals and copies are being requested of the

technical proposal and the cost proposal?

5 Copies.

• Section 5.8 requires that proposer provide proof that it can pass the applicable federal

security requirements if the Scope of Services requires access to the BRAA Customs and

Patrol facility. What type of proof is acceptable?

Per the Technical Specs, all guards assigned to the post are required to apply for and obtain

a US Customs access badge, which may require an FBI fingerprint based criminal history

records check (CHRC), Security Threat Assessment (STA), and proof of citizenship and

residency in accordance with the applicable Federal regulations. More detailed information

Position Hourly Rate Estimated Annual Hours

Airfield Qualified Guard $ 8,760

As Needed: 

Additional Airfield Qualified Guard with vehicle $

Additional Airfield Qualified Guard without vehicle $

Additional Non-airfield Qualified Guard with vehicle $

Additional Non-airfield Qualified Guard without vehicle $

Optional:  Annual Escalation



regarding the requirements for vendor access to the Customs and Border Protection Facility 

are attached as Exhibit A. Vendors should provide a written statement certifying their 

ability to meet the requirements as specified.  

• Sections 9.1.h, 9.1.i and 9.1.j of Section 9 refer respectively to a Performance Bond,

Payment Bond and Letter of Credit. Are any of those instruments required to be provided

by the awarded proposer upon notification of intent to award?

Per Section 3.6 of the RFP, no bond is required.

• We note that the proposal may include an annual escalation rate. See Exhibit B Technical

Specifications “Financial Terms”. We appreciate the allowance of planned rate

adjustments for each contract year. Will the BRAA also allow additional rate adjustments

as needed from time to time to permit the Contractor to increase rates with automatic

effect in order to recoup increases in the following costs that are outside the Contractor’s

control: Federal, state or local taxes, levies, or required withholdings; costs under

collective bargaining agreements; minimum wage rates and other statutory

requirements, such a legally mandated sick leave costs; and medical and other benefit

costs?

All overhead costs shall be captured in the contract hourly rates. Any adjustments for

holiday hours or other special adjustments shall be specified in the proposal. The proposal

may include an annual escalation of the rate.

• Financial Terms requires that “Airfield Qualified Guards shall receive a minimum pay of

$15.00 per hour.”  Has BRAA considered designating a Lead Supervisor minimum pay

rate that would allow a lead officer to act as the primary POC to BRAA and provide

supervision to the Airfield Qualified Guards on other shifts?

The $15 per hour is the minimum allowable rate that the vendor shall pay the Airfield

Qualified Guards. The Vendor may choose to pay positions at a higher rate at their

discretion.  The proposed contract rates should encompass all overhead costs for providing

the service, including the minimum hourly rate for the Airfield Qualified Guard.

• Would BRAA be willing to consider 30-day payment terms?  Our company does not
permit 45-day payment terms.

All payments are made in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act, Section 218.74,
Florida Statutes, upon presentation of a proper invoice to BRAA. The Prompt Payment Act
specifies a 45-day payment term.



Exhibit A 

CBP Badging Procedures  

Always First Class

1

Badging Process for obtaining secure area clearance at US CBP office Boca Raton. 

1. Obtain new passport photos, 2 copies.
2. Fill out applicable CBP access forms (contained herein). Applicant forms must be

accompanied by an Authorized Signatory Letter for each firm requesting access, and a
Letter Requesting CBP Secure Area Access for each employee.

3. Each company/entity submitting an access request must maintain quarterly reports of all
employees maintaining access as well as any employee’s change in status or need for
secure area access.

4. All applications and signatory letters must be remitted on official company letterhead and
specifically reference the Boca Raton US CBP location.

5. Obtain appointment with US CBP offices at the Port of Palm Beach
(https://www.cbp.gov/contact/ports/west-palm-beach) for interview. Bring completed
application packet, proof of US citizenship, and photos to interview.



APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR 
INITIAL & RENEWAL  

CBP ACCESS CARD 

1. Letter on Company Stationary
2. Completed CBP 3078 Form
3. Additional Instructions
4. Acknowledgement of Access Conditions
5. Two Passport Photos
6. Copy of Proof of US Citizenship/US

Resident Status(Birth Certificate, US
Passport/ US Resident Card)

7. Copy of DOA Badge
8. For Initial Applicant DD-214 Required if

Served in U.S. Military
9. For Renewal Only-Submit Previous FIS

Access Pass



 
The photographs must be: 

 2x2 inches in size (“passport style”)  
 Identical  
 Taken within the past 6 (six) months, showing current appearance  
 Color (preferred)  
 Full face, front view with a plain white or off-white background  
 Between 1 inch and 1 1/4 inches from the bottom of the chin to the top of the head  
 Taken in normal street attire (preferred)  

o Uniforms should not, but can be worn in photographs  
o Applicants must not wear a hat or headgear that obscures the hair or 

hairline.  
o If the applicant normally wears prescription glasses, a hearing device, wig 

or similar articles, they should be worn for the picture  
o Dark glasses or non-prescription glasses with tinted lenses are not 

acceptable unless needed by the applicant for medical reasons. A medical 
certificate may be required.  

 
 



(Company Letterhead) 
 
 

SAMPLE: “AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY” LETTER 
 
 

Date:  _______________ 
 
TO:  U.S. Customs & Border Protection 
Palm Beach International Airport  
CBP Airport Security Office 
1 East 11th Street, Suite 323, Box #4 
Riviera Beach, FL 33404 
 
This is to certify that (Company Name) is in compliance with the Customs and 
Border Protection Airport Security program as required by 19 CFR 122.82 (Code 
of Federal Regulations). A CHRC (Criminal History Records Check) 
investigation and/or security background employment verification for the most 
recent five (5) years, and references have been verified on all employees and are 
presented with fingerprints to the Palm Beach County Department of Airports 
Security Office. 
 
U.S. Customs and Border Protection will take legal enforcement against persons 
(employer/employees) making any fraudulent or intentionally false statement or 
entry on any security program, record application, report, access, or identification 
medium, or any other document that is kept, made, or used to show compliance.  
This applies to all “person” meaning individual, firm, partnership, corporation, 
company, association, joint-stock association, or governmental entity. 
 
The following persons are authorized to sign for CBP badge issuance, renewals, 
requests for replacement, lost/stolen reports, and quarterly reports: 
 
NAME (print or type)  TITLE   SIGNATURE 
 
_________________  __________  _______________________ 
 
 
In addition, we understand that all CBP issued identification badges are the 
property of U.S. Customs and Border Protection and will be returned to CBP 
upon termination, upon lawful demand of a CBP Officer, or due to any Security 
Violation. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
(Signature of Authorized Official, Manager, or Supervisor; e-mail; telephone) 
*Authorized Official can not designate him/herself as a signatory 



(Letter Requesting CBP Security Area Access) 
(To be typed on Company Letterhead) 

Date: 

U.S. Customs & Border Protection 
Palm Beach International Airport  
CBP Airport Security Office 
1 East 11th Street, Suite 323, Box #4 
Riviera Beach, FL 33404 

To CBP Port Director: 

A background check has been performed on the applicant to the extent allowable by law, 
including at a minimum, references and employment history to the extent necessary to 
verify representations made by the applicant relating to employment in the preceding five 
years.  To the best of my knowledge, the applicant meets the conditions necessary to 
perform functions associated with employment in the CBP Airport Security Areas as 
described in 19 CFR 122.181.  We request access to the CBP Security areas at the Boca 
Raton US CBP Facility.  This employee has been advised of and instructed in the 
requirements and responsibilities of possessing CBP access.  We will monitor this 
employee in order to ensure that he/she remains in compliance with all CBP orders, rules, 
regulations, directives and memos governing his/her behavior while in a CBP security 
area, and will insure the compliance of our employee with these orders, rules, 
regulations, directives and memos. 
This applicant has been fingerprinted, and his/her information is on file with the PBIA 
Airport Security Office. 

APPLICANT NAME: _________________________________ 

DATE OF BIRTH: ____________________________________ 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER: _________________________ 

Specific description of the duties this applicant will perform while in the CBP Security 
Area: 

Sincerely,  
(Signature & Title of “Designated Signatory”) 
(Telephone Number / E-mail Address – if applicable) 















(Letter Advising of Change in Employee’s Status / Termination / Lost Badge) 
(To be typed on Company letterhead) 

 
Date: 
 
U.S. Customs & Border Protection 
Palm Beach International Airport  
CBP Airport Security Office 
1 East 11th Street, Suite 323, Box #4 
Riviera Beach, FL 33404 
 
TO: Officer Hamilton:  
 
As required by 19 CFR 122.184(c), if an employer becomes aware of any change in 
circumstance of its employee, the employer must advise CBP of that fact within 24 hours.  
Therefore, I am writing to inform you that I have become aware within the last 24 hours 
of a change in circumstances of my employee as follows: 
 
NAME:  ___________________________________________________ 
 
DATE OF BIRTH:  __________________________________________ 
 
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER:  ______________________________ 
 
CBP Airport Security Area ID #:  _______________________________ 
 
DATE OF CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCE: _____________________ 
 
Check One: 
 

□ Employee Transferred (no longer working at PBIA)   □ Retired    □ Quit / Terminated  
 
 
Check One: 
 

□ Arrested (Misdemeanor or Felony) □ Convicted  □ Found not guilty by 
reason of insanity 
 

□ Committed an Act or Omission involving a disqualifying offense □ Other 
(specify) 

 
 
Check One: 
 

□ Lost Badge  □ Badge Stolen □ Other (specify) 



Details of circumstance of which I have become aware:   
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
If possible, the following information regarding all arrests (if applicable) have been 
provided: 

 Grand Jury indictment or information 
 Police statements and/or reports 
 Certified court transcripts 
 Factual court documents including: 

o Records of each arrest 
o Certified Judgment and Conviction Records 
o Sentence 
o Probation Orders 

 
 
(For all circumstances, except transfers, retirements, and non-wrongful terminations) A 
written statement from the employee detailing the particulars of this incident has 
been included. 
 
  
Check One: 
 

We      □ will □ will not  
 
request re-issuance of CBP Airport Security Area access for this employee.  A new 
application package must be submitted. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
(Signature of “Designated Signatory” / Title) 
(Telephone number / E-mail address if applicable) 
 



 
Quarterly Report 

(to be typed on COMPANY LETTERHEAD) 
 
 

Date:     (Due on Oct 1st, Jan 1st, Apr 1st, July 1st ) 
 
U.S. Customs & Border Protection 
Palm Beach International Airport  
CBP Airport Security Office 
1 East 11th Street, Suite 323, Box #4 
Riviera Beach, FL 33404 
 
RE:  Quarterly CBP Airport Security ID Badge report for _____ quarter, 20___. 
 
Enclosed, please find the Quarterly Report for         (name of company)_____ in 
accordance with 19 CFR 122.184(c) of the Federal Regulations.  The following 
individuals are currently employed by us: 
 
(Please list alphabetically) 
 

Name DOB SSN# CBP ID# Date of Expiry 
     
     
     
     
 
ADDITIONS FROM LAST QUARTERLY REPORT: 
 
(Please list alphabetically)  NONE (or) 
 

Name DOB SSN# CBP ID# Date of 
Addition 

Reason for 
Addition 

     (new employee) 
     (Re-applicant) 
      
      
 
DELETIONS FROM LAST QUARTERLY REPORT: 
 
(Please list alphabetically)  NONE (or)    

 
Name DOB SSN# CBP ID# Date of 

Deletion 
Reason for 
Deletion 

     (Stolen) 
     (Lost) 



     (Damaged) 
     (Terminated) 
      
      
 
 
Sincerely,      
 
 
 
(Signature / Title of Authorized Designated Signatory) 
(Telephone Number) 
(e-mail address if applicable) 
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